
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – May 24, 2021   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: May 24, 2021 
Place: Zoom Webinar  
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
             
 

1. Call to Order 
 

A. Roll call 
 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg 1 /Agenda 
 
 

3. Pg 3 /Benefit Charge Program – Attorney Eric Quinn 
   
 

4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
Individuals wishing to comment that are calling in by phone, please press *9 to raise 
your hand.  If connecting by computer, please click the “raise hand” feature. You will 
be notified when it is your turn to speak. Before commenting, please identify yourself 
for the record. You will have three minutes to address the Board.  
 

 

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:   
B. Pg 9 /Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of May 10, 2021    
C. Pg 12 /Approval of:  

 
 
 
 
 

Pg 26 /For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling $405,215.58 
are included in Warrants noted above:  

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11088 to 11129 -$236,454.23 (Included in A/P Warrant 56097) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11130 to 11174 -$168,761.35 (Included in A/P Warrant 56136) 

 
 

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
 
 

7. New Business (First Reading) 
 
 

8. Considerations and Requests 
 

A. Pg 44 /Fire Chief Selection – Chair Holm  
 
 

B. Pg 45 /Freeman Road Annexation – Chief Olson 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56091 to 56134 totaling $ 430,294.92 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56135 to 56162 totaling $ 214,476.99 

GRAND TOTAL $ 644,771.91 

1



 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – May 24, 2021   Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg 48 /Field Operations – AC Kent  
i. April Operations/EMS Report 

 
 

B. Pg 51 /EMS – AC Bouchard 
 
 

C. Pg 52 /Prevention and Education – AC Overby 
 

 

D. Pg 53 /Information Technology – ITD Kay 
i. April IT KPIs  

 
 

E. Pg 56 /DC Administration – DC Karns 
 

 

F. Pg 57 /Fire Chief – Chief Olson 
 
 

10. Correspondence 
 

A. Pg 59 /Pierce County Sheriff Deputy’s recognition 
 
 

B. Pg 60 /Employee Recognition 
 
 

11. Commissioner Comments  
 
 

12. Executive Session under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a 
public employee. 
 
 

13. Adjournment 

2



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   May 24, 2021 

Item Title:   Benefit Charge Program 

Attachments:   Draft resolution 

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 
Attorney Eric Quinn will be in attendance to review the proposed resolution 
reestablishing the Benefit Charge policy and procedures. 
 
He will also discuss options for the benefit charge election in April 2022. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

3



 
Resolution No. XX-XX Reestablishing Benefit Charge Program Policies and Procedures     1 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. XX-XX 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS OF CENTRAL PIERCE 
FIRE & RESCUE TO RE-ESTABLISH POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR THE 
IMPOSITION OF BENEFIT CHARGES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE. 
 

WHEREAS, Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, and the former Pierce County Fire 
Protection District No. 6, have imposed, with voter approval, a fire benefit charge for 
many years since the merger of Pierce County Fire Districts 6, 7 and 9 in the early 
1990’s; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has overseen a 

comprehensive review of the benefit charge program at Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
during recent months, and the Board desires to re-state, revise and re-establish the 
policies and procedures applicable to the benefit charge program in this district;  

 
NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.   This resolution shall be the fundamental declaration of the policies and 
procedures of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue as to the benefit charge allowed for by 
Chapter 52.18 RCW.  Policy No. 342, promulgated by the Fire Chief, as revised last on 
July 27, 2015, is hereby replaced and superseded by this resolution, which the Fire 
Chief and administrative staff have the full power to implement and apply, but not the 
power to alter. 
 
Section 2.   By this resolution, the benefit charge (or fire benefit charge) is hereby re-
established and re-imposed throughout the district, subject to the annual resolution of 
the Board approving the individual benefit charges applicable to each and every 
covered property within the district. 
 
Section 3.   Basic Policy and Principles.  The overriding policy of the Board of 
Commissioners, with respect to the benefit charges in the district, is that the benefit 
charges assessed will be fair, and fairly apportioned between and within all categories 
of property owners, so as to reflect, as nearly as practicable, the actual benefit afforded 
to each property by reason of the fire protection services provided by the district to the 
property owners.  All statutorily-required exemptions and discounts will be included in 
this program (see below).  Any property owner who demonstrates that the proposed 
benefit charge to be imposed on their property is excessive will be given a fair 
adjustment through the appeal or adjustment process. 
 
 
 

4



 
Resolution No. XX-XX Reestablishing Benefit Charge Program Policies and Procedures     2 

Section 4.   Process and Procedures. 
a. Categories of Real Property/Land Use:  Each property subject to the benefit 

charge will be placed in an appropriate category due to their use of the land, 
which may include but are not limited to residential, commercial, and 
industrial categories.  

b. The Formula: Central Pierce will continue to use the formula that has been 
applied within the district for more than twenty (20) years as it has retained its 
validity.  The goal of this formula is to reflect the benefit received by each 
property, by taking into account in the calculation of the charge the costs of 
fire suppression and costs related to dealing with any special hazards 
presented upon the property.  The formula uses coefficients for each type of 
land use category.  Square footage and fire flow are parameters used in the 
formula. 

c. Using data provided by the county annually, the district will prepare the 
proposed charges for review by the board and the property owners.  A public 
hearing will then be held annually to review and prepare to impose the 
charges.  Next, the board will adopt a resolution to establish or impose the 
annual charges, and will then provide that information to the county.  Then the 
property owners will be notified of the benefit charges to be imposed on their 
respective properties. This information will be provided in the annual tax 
statement delivery to the property owner by Pierce County in the first quarter 
of each year. A review board will be convened for at least two weeks to 
review any complaints or appeals, and adjustments will be made as needed 
to ensure that the charges are fair, just and proportional to the benefit. 

d. In the calculations of applicable benefit charges, the District reserves the right 
to include known improvements to property data that are not identified by 
Pierce County, utilizing the District’s own methodology. (Such methods would 
include but not be limited to use of GIS, visual inspection, owner verification, 
or other means.)  

e. The benefit charge shall be reasonably apportioned to the measurable benefit 
to the property, using the following Benefit Charge Equation: 

 

 
 

 “Square feet” is the total size of the structure(s) in square feet, including garages, 
carports and outbuildings. 

 18 is a coefficient value based on empirical tests by NFA and ISO. 

 “Cost factor” is the factor used to estimate the current cost of fire suppression in any 
given structure based upon the revenue needs of the district to maintain or enhance 
the level of service. 

 “Use factor” varies by property classification such as residential or commercial. Use 
factors for the various occupancies are: 

5



 
Resolution No. XX-XX Reestablishing Benefit Charge Program Policies and Procedures     3 

 

Mobile home .33 

Residential (single-family residence, duplex, single-story triplex, 
single-story fourplex, townhouse, or condominium) 

.44 

Multi-story triplex or fourplex (based on average sq ft per unit) .45 

Apartment building (5 units or more, based on average sq ft per unit) .45 

Commercial (121 to 1,500 sq ft) 1.00 

Commercial (1,501 to 3,000 sq ft) 1.55 

Commercial (3,001 to 12,000 sq ft) 1.75 

Commercial (12,001 to 40,000 sq ft) 2.00 

Commercial (40,001 to 70,000 sq ft) 2.50 

Commercial (70,001 to 100,000 sq ft) 3.50 

Commercial (100,001 to 200,000 sq ft) 4.50 

Commercial (200,001 to 300,000 sq ft) 5.00 

Commercial (300,001 to 400,000 sq ft) 6.00 

Commercial (more than 400,000 sq ft) 7.00 

 
Section 5.   Exemptions and Discounts. 

a. All statutorily required exemptions will be applied by the district, and other 
exemptions have been established by this board including: 

 The exemption of religious organizations’ property except for business 
operations, profit-making enterprises, or activities not including use of 
a sanctuary or activities not including use of a sanctuary or related to 
kindergarten, primary, or secondary educational purposes or for 
institutions of higher education. 

 Property of housing authorities. 

 Property of nonprofit entities providing low-income housing. 

 Property of nonprofit homes for the aging. 

 Property of nonprofits providing housing to those with developmental 
disabilities. 

 Property of nonprofits providing emergency or transitional housing to 
domestic violence victims. 

 Property of the state housing finance commission. 

 Property of nonprofits operating sheltered workshops for disabled 
persons. 

 Granges which are not used for substantial social, political or 
commercial activities shall be calculated at the residential rate.  

 Property owned by any entity maintaining its own fire department, so 
long as the entity operates a fire protection system and training that 
has been accepted by a fire insurance underwriter that maintains a fire 
protection engineering and inspection service authorized by the state 
Insurance Commissioner to do business in this state. 

 Property upon which the total square footage of all structures does not 
exceed 120 square feet. 
 

6



 
Resolution No. XX-XX Reestablishing Benefit Charge Program Policies and Procedures     4 

b.  The district will provide the following discounts: 

 For functioning sprinkler systems in residential and/or commercial 
properties, a discount of 20% will be allowed. 

 Senior/disability discounts will be applied at the same percentage as 
Pierce County provides to the taxpayer. 

 Property owned by a Christmas tree grower, if the property has been 
approved as farm or agricultural land with standing crops, a discount 
will be allowed.  The benefit charge will not exceed the amount of any 
tax reduction allowed for the property and may not exceed an amount 
equal to 50 cents per thousand of assessed valuation. 

 
Section 6.  Special Circumstances. 

a. Government entities may enter into a Fire Protection Contract in lieu of a 
benefit charge. 

b. Pierce County identifies garages and carports both by square footage and by 
number.  When identified by number, the District shall assign the following 
square feet for purposes of calculating the applicable benefit charge: 

 Carport –200 sq. ft. per carport 

 Garage –250 sq. ft. per garage 
c. Low Income Co-Ops. The benefit charge will be calculated based on 

information provided by Pierce County Senior/Disabled Exemption division. 
d. Airplane hangars used for purposes of storing planes and aviation equipment 

shall be classified as residential. Airplane hangars used for purposes of 
operating a business shall be classified as commercial.  

e. In the event that a property owner succeeds in appealing a particular benefit 
charge applicable to that property owner in three consecutive years, the 
District may automatically reduce the benefit charge as to the specific 
property, without the necessity of an appeal, after the District has, through its 
due diligence, established no change in the circumstances of the property. 

 
Section 7. Matrix Establishing Responsibilities of the Board and the Fire Chief 
 
In establishing and administering the benefit charge, the Board and the Fire Chief shall 
operate in the following manner:  
 

Policy Establishment (Board) Policy Implementation (Fire Chief) 

Establishment of BC and annual resolution 
imposing the BC on each property  

Administering collection of the BC through 
data production and application  

Final approval of appeals of and 
adjustments to BC 

Administering appeal and adjustment 
process  

Adopting the formula for imposing the BC Applying the formula to given properties 
and calculating the BC based on the 
applied formula 

Establishing exemptions and discounts 
from BC 

Applying exemptions and discounts 
established by the Board in collection of 
the BC  

7



 
Resolution No. XX-XX Reestablishing Benefit Charge Program Policies and Procedures     5 

Approve Consultant’s Contract for BC 
calculation process 

Recommend Consultant’s Contract for BC 
calculation process 

Hold all required public hearings Assisting in all required public hearings  

 
 

 
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FOR CENTRAL 

PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR 
MEETING HELD ON THIS   DAY OF     , 2021, OF WHICH 
ALL COMMISSIONERS WERE NOTIFIED AND  WERE PRESENT AND VOTING. 
 
 
 
             
Matt Holm, Board Chair    Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner 
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner    Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
        
Bill Eckroth, Commissioner  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Tanya Robacker, District Secretary 

8



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   May 10, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

May 10, 2021 
 
 
Vice Chair Stringfellow called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue to order by Zoom meeting at 5:00 p.m. Present were Vice 
Chair Stringfellow, Commissioners Holm, Coleman, Willis and Eckroth, Ex-Officio Door, 
Chief Olson, Deputy Chiefs Karns and Stueve, Assistant Chiefs Juarez, McKenzie, and 
Stueve, HRD Washo, ITD Kay, and Executive Assistant Porter, recorder 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chief Olson requested that the Executive Session be removed from the agenda. 
Commissioner Willis moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to remove the 
Executive Session from the agenda and approve the agenda as modified. MOTION 
CARRIED.  
 
RICE FERGUS MILLER – RFM was selected for future architectural and engineering 
services through the recent request for services process. Howard Struve and Sarah 
Gladics introduced themselves and their company. DC Karns noted that there are no 
current projects underway, but they will be providing services for the new Station 73. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of April 12, 2021    
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Willis moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda including warrants totaling $5,204,274.83. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
No unfinished business. 
 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
No new business. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  

A. Fire Chief Selection  

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56050 to 56079 totaling $ 630,869.49 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56080 to 56090 totaling $ 4,532,098.70 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107515 to 10715 totaling $ 1,234.00 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107516 to 107523 totaling $ 40,072.64 

GRAND TOTAL $ 5,204,274.83 

9



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   May 10, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

Chair Holm and the internal team met with Heather Gantz to review process next steps.  
 

B. 2021 Pierce County Fire Protection Contract  
 
The District has contracted with Pierce County for fire protection services for many 
years. The contract amount represents the District’s share of the resource pool. 
Commissioner Willis moved and Commissioner Holm seconded to approve the 2021 
Pierce County Contract for Fire Protection Services, as presented, in the amount of 
$185,431.00. MOTION CARRIED.  
 

C. Increase IT Consortium Agency Direct Costs  
 
The increase to the planned budget is a result from an audit “true-up” of actual planned 
IT expenses by Graham, Gig Harbor and Key Peninsula that the IT Consortium will 
purchase and implement on their behalf. IT has worked with the consortium Fire Chiefs, 
CPFR Finance and Chief Olson to finalize these figures. Commissioner Willis moved 
and Commissioner Eckroth seconded to authorize an increase to the IT Consortium 
Agency Direct Costs from $285,758.00 to $643,507.00. MOTION CARRIED.  
 

D. Puyallup Armory Purchase  
 
The Washington National Guard completed the appraisal on the Armory property 
intended for a new Station 73. The price is significantly higher than anticipated back in 
2015, but is in the range of reasonableness for the product available. Commissioner 
Willis moved and Commissioner Holm seconded to direct Chief Olson to enter into a 
purchase and sale agreement with the State of Washington to purchase the Puyallup 
Armory Property for $900,000.00. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

A. Training – AC Juarez acknowledged Support Specialist Jackie Wood for her work 
with the new evaluation software. She created evaluation forms that were above 
and beyond what the vendor had provided, so much so, that they contacted her 
for details on how they were created. 

B. Health & Safety – AC McKenzie provided an update on COVID activities. 
C. Logistics – AC Stueve. 
D. Human Resources – HRD Washo shared that the decision was made to increase 

the July academy from 12 to 14 individuals.  
E. DC Operations – DC Stueve included the 2020 Service Level Objectives 

document. 
F. Fire Chief – Chief Olson explained that the decision to increase the number of 

academy recruits was based on anticipated retirements in 2022 and, historically, 
the loss of a recruit during the academy. The draft resolution reestablishing the 
benefit charge will be brought to the Board for review and comment at the next 
meeting. The plan is to finalize the resolution during the budget process in the 

10



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   May 10, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

fall. Staff is keeping attentive to the Governor’s COVID proclamations and 
continuing with the precautions that have been in place up to now.  
 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 Employee Recognition 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Ex-Officio Door provided updates on Puyallup City Council and South Sound 911 
activities.   
 
Commissioner Willis was glad to see the agreement on the Armory property. There 
weren’t many options and it was important to secure that property.  
 
Commissioner Stringfellow was also happy to see the property agreement. He 
appreciated the new apparatus pictures from AC Stueve. CPFR has some of the finest 
looking fire apparatus out there and he thanked everyone that made it happen.  
 
Commissioner Holm expressed his appreciation of Mayor Door and Councilmember 
Hunter on their exceptional work being done with South Sound 911. The Armory 
property is a good deal and he is glad to see the property secured.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Willis moved and Commissioner 
Eckroth seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
MATT HOLM     TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
      
DIANNE PORTER 
RECORDER  

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  May 24, 2021 

Item Title:   Fire Chief Selection Process 

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Chair Holm or HRD Washo will provide a verbal update on the process.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

44



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  May 24, 2021 

Item Title:   Freeman Road Annexation 

Attachments:   Quinn Legal Opinion 

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
In January 2020, I shared with the BOC that the City of Puyallup proposed annexation 
of 134 acres (43 parcels) in the Puyallup Valley. The parcels were located in 
unincorporated Pierce County, and bordered the cities of Puyallup, Fife and Edgewood. 
Fire District 10 provided fire service. 
 
We received notification from the Prevention and Education Division that the annexation 
was complete with an effective date of May 15, 2021.   
 
I asked Dianne Porter to follow-up with the county on the impact of assessed valuation 
and tax revenue. The Pierce County Assessor-Treasurers office forwarded her inquiry 
to the Department of Revenue for clarification on the transfer of a fire district through an 
annexation. We hope to have their comments to share at the meeting.  
 
In the meantime, I reached out to Joe Quinn for a legal opinion, which I have attached. 
He states that the statute is very clear that newly annexed property shall also be 
annexed and a part of the fire protection district.  
 
Dianne’s preliminary research shows that we could see an impact of $47 million in AV 
and around $100K in tax/benefit charge revenue.  Also of note, three of the parcels 
were sold to the Department of Transportation in late 2019/2020.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
 
 

45



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

46



 

 

 

            
 

 

 

May 17, 2021 

 

 

Chief Dan Olson 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

    Re: Annexation to City of Puyallup 

Dear Dan: 

You have requested our opinion on the effect of a recent annexation of territory to the City of Puyallup.  

Apparently, this annexation of an area located within Pierce County Fire District No. 10, is in the 

Freeman Road area of Pierce County.  The proposed annexation has already been approved by the 

Washington State Boundary Review Board for Pierce County, but apparently some question remains at 

the Office of the Pierce County Assessor as to the placement of this annexation area upon the tax rolls of 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue (CPFR). 

Several years ago, pursuant to RCW 52.04.061 et seq., the City of Puyallup stopped maintaining its own 

fire department when annexation to Central Pierce Fire & Rescue was approved by the electorate. All of 

the city is now a part of CPFR.   The question presented is answered succinctly by a one-sentence 

statute, which is part of the same statutory scheme as cited above.  RCW 52.04.091 provides as follows: 

 “When any city, code city, or town is annexed to a fire protection district under 
 RCW 52.04.061 and 52.04.071, thereafter, any territory annexed by the city shall 
 also be annexed and be a part of the fire protection district.” 

This mandatory statute is very clear and applies precisely to this situation.  However, even if the City of 

Puyallup was not annexed into your fire district, the annexation area in question would be removed by 

operation of law from the taxing district of Pierce County Fire District No. 10. 

 

     Very truly yours, 

 

     Joseph F. Quinn 

. 
 

 Quinn & Quinn, P.S. 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CORPORATION 

 ATTORNEY AT LAW 

20 Forest Glen Lane SW 
Lakewood, WA 98498 

253-576-3232 
Email: joequinn@firehouselawyer.com 

ericquinn@firehouselawyer2.com 
 

47



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  5/24/2021 

Item Title:   AC Ops Report 

Attachments:   May 2021 Ops Report Attached 

Submitted by:  AC Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 

 1st Graham/CPFR Battalion Chief meeting held to discuss Hazard Zone 
Operational differences and commonalities. 

 BC, Captain and Lieutenant Promotions to take place this month.  New Day BC, new 
Captain at 61 and new Hobo Lt. 

 Continued Drill and Prep for 2021 Brush Fire Season to include Graham Fire companies 
 BC, Captain and Lt. testing wrapped up.  6-BC, 10-Captain, 17-Lt.  I am excited about 

the numbers that turned out to be leaders in our organization.  It is a good sign!   A sign 
of health. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

48



Operations/EMS 
April 2021 

 
2,652 Incidents 

 
2021 Year-to-Date Calls:  10,019 
2020 Year-to-Date Calls:    9,727 
     Net increase (3.0%)            292 

 
 
 

Monthly Calls in Station Area 
 

*unable to provide Station Area call volumes for this reporting period due to a reporting software error 
with the Station field that is in the process of being resolved 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Month-to-Month Comparison 

 

Fire
70, 3%

EMS/Rescue
1,965, 74%

Hazardous 
Condition

21, 1%

Service 
Call 146, 

5%

Good Intent
314, 12%

Other
136, 5%

2,
62

9

2,
46

1

2,
47

5

2,
16

2

2,
30

4

2,
36

1 2,
75

9

2,
66

2

2,
75

7

2,
36

3

2,
43

7

2,
27

52,
60

9 

2,
21

8 

2,
54

0 

2,
65

2 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020
2021

Mutual/Auto Aid Apparatus Response 
 
*unable to provide MA by District at this time, due to new 
incident reporting platform 
 

49



Operations/EMS 
April 2021 

 
 

Structure Fires – 111 Call Type 

 
 

Fire Loss – 111 Call Type 

 
 

EMS Calls/Transports 

 

8 9
6

11

5
7 8

10
8 7 8 9

14

6

12 11

0

5

10

15

20

25

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020
2021

$3
60

,9
16

 

$1
77

,9
00

 

$6
7,

48
6 $1

,2
43

,7
00

 

$1
14

,5
00

 

$2
68

,0
36

 

$4
,3

05
,1

69
 

$8
42

,6
52

 

$2
,7

58
,5

83
 

$6
24

,0
58

 

$1
56

,6
70

 

$4
45

,9
08

 

$6
47

,6
38

 

$2
50

,2
47

 

$2
,3

52
,5

41
 

$3
67

,6
15

 

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000
 $4,500,000
 $5,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020
2021

50



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 05/24/2021 

Item Title: EMS Division Report 

Attachments:  

Submitted by: AC Bouchard 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:   

 

Pediatric Out-of-Hospital Cardiac Arrest (POHCA) Study:  First documented case to be entered 
into the study. Positive feedback from the crews. 
 
Paramedic Airway Management:  Train the trainer classes already active.  Multiple classes for 
PAM throughout May and June. 
 
CARES:  ~540 referrals since August 2019.  ~85% of referrals no longer call or have shown 
significant reduction in 911 usage.   
 
 

51



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date:  May 24th, 2021 

Item Title:  Prevention and Education 

Attachments:  None 

Submitted by:  Guy Overby 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

First reading
 

Second reading
 

Motion to approve
 

For information only
 

Other:
   

 
SUMMARY:    
 

  
1‐With Pierce County moving to Phase III last week and full reopening scheduled for June 30, we are 
anticipating a ramp up in Interim Events. Many others that were tentatively planned will also likely be 
green lighted. Attendance numbers will also be moved up to reflect the additional capacity now being 
allowed. I would expect to see official announcements on July 4th, Meeker Days, National Night Out, 
Freddie Fest and the Fall Fair soon.  
 
2‐Captain Shaw was selected to teach Social Media at the Pierce County PIO Roundtable. This speaks 
volumes about how our neighboring agencies view our social media presence.  
 
3‐DFM Hansel passed his first annual recertification in Nashville earlier this month with flying colors. He 
took only 20 seconds out of an allotted 25 minutes to pass his open field test. In the 18 months Hansel 
been with CPFR he has been deployed to 73 fires and requested by over 35 different agencies.  
 
4‐The constructing of the new CPFR website is complete. We are now in the process of loading all of the 
content. Captain Shaw is working hard to accomplish this task and we should be able to have it ready to 
preview by the June 28th BOC meeting at the latest.  
 
 
 
 

52



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: May 24, 2021 

Item Title:  Information Technology Division Report 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by: Jay Kay  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 

1) IT Key Performance Indicators (attached) 
a. Of Note: 

i. Resolved 322 Consortium-Wide Trouble Tickets and Requests 
ii. Resolved 533 Consortium-Wide Helpdesk Calls 
iii. 0 COVID-19 Consortium-Wide Tickets 
iv. On-Station Support Visits: 13 
v. Tier 1 Application Availability: 100.00% 
vi. 2020 Network Availability: 100.00%  
vii. Attachment included 

 
2) Projects Completed: 

a. 24 Scheduled Projects for 2021. 
i. Major Projects in Process 
ii. The following major projects are under way: 

1. Complete IT Consortium User Contact Policy and Process 
2. Continuation of the UcaaS implementation 
3. Continuation of Health & Safety Workflows 
4. Planning for the Consortium-wide O365 - Exchange Upgrade 
5. Coordinate and assist implementation of One Solution Hot Fix 53 
6. Gig Harbor SharePoint Migration 
7. Continued Network Administrator position replacement 

53



2021 CPFR IT KPI's Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

Tier 1 Application Availability:

ePCR/RMS/MPS/BIAS Availability (Hours) 2,880.00 2,880.00 2,880.00 2,880.00 11520.00

Actual Availability (Hours) 2,879.00 2,880.00 2,874.00 2,880.00 11513.00

Availability % 99.97% 100.00% 99.79% 100.00% 99.939%

One Solution Availability (Hours) 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 800.00

Actual Availability (Hours) 199.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 799.00

Availability % 99.50% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 99.875%

Exchange Availability (Hours) 720.00 720.00 720.00 720.00 2880.00

Actual Availability (Hours) 720.00 720.00 720.00 720.00 2880.00

Availability % 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Telestaff Availability (Hours) 720.00 720.00 720.00 720.00 2880.00

Actual Availability (Hours) 720.00 720.00 720.00 720.00 2880.00

Availability % 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.000%

Application Outage (Events): 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total Application Downtime (Hours) 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18.00

Network Availability:

Network Availability (Hours) 16560.00 16560.00 16560.00 16560.00 66240.00

Actual Network Availability (Hours) 16553.50 16560.00 16560.00 16560.00 66233.50

Availability % 99.96% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - - - - - - 99.990%

Network Outages (Events): 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total Network Downtime (Hours) 6.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.50

Incident & Request Tickets:

Trouble Tickets (Opened) 340 345 340 254 1279

Trouble Tickets (Closed) 312 385 324 322 1343

COVID-19 Tickets (Closed) 8 0 1 0 9

Security Incidents 0 0 0 0 0

 

Projects:

Total 24 29 31 31 31

Open 24 26 27 24 24

Hardware Deployments:

PC 0 0 1 1 2

Tablet/Laptop 0 0 1 8 9

Cell 2 0 0 1 3

Station Support Calls:

CP 28 17 15 8 68

G 17 5 2 1 25

GH 10 5 7 2 24

KP 2 0 2 2 6

Total On-site Station Support Visits: 57 27 26 13 123

Helpdesk Calls:

ACD Calls 578 426 529 533 2066

After-Hours Support Hours:

Infrastructure Support Hours 18.50 12.00 52.25 3.00 85.75

Application Support Hours 5.50 4.00 5.00 3.00 17.50

Miscellaneous Support Hours 19.00 3.50 15.25 3.00 40.75

Total After-Hours Support Hours 43.00 19.50 72.50 9.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 144.00

Inventory:

-- Active User Accounts 884 884 884 885 885

2021 CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE IT KPI's

54



-- PCs 211 211 211 211 211

-- Spare PCs 18 17 16 14 14

-- Laptops 10 10 9 9 9

-- Spare Laptops 4 4 4 4 4

-- Tablets 255 255 255 255 255

-- Spare Tablets 18 18 18 18 18

-- Getacs 83 83 83 83 83

-- Spare Getacs 10 9 4 4 4

-- Printers 76 76 76 76 76

-- Cellphones 185 185 185 185 185

-- Broadband/MDD Cards 113 114 114 114 114

55



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  May 24,2021 

Item Title:   DC Admin 

Attachments:    Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by:  Russ Karns, Deputy Chief 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:    
 
Legal issues for station 72 dirt are ongoing with no resolution at this time however there is a lot 
of discussion.  
 
I attended the trip to KME for the final inspections on 3 of the 5 Engines we have ordered along 
with a mid-build inspection on our 2 Ladders. We also met with KME leadership to address a 
couple issues and continue to develop our relationship. 
 
Working with leadership team to research comparable organizations and develop a plan for 
upcoming labor discussions. 
 
AC Stueve and I met with a vendor who provides facility evaluations and software. The plan 
would be to have the vendor do the initial evaluation and we would do them annually there after.  
 
 
   
 
 
 

56



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  May 24, 2021 

Item Title:  Fire Chief’s Report 

Attachments:    

Submitted by: Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 

Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve 
 
Board of Fire Commissioners: 
 

1. Warrants: 
a. Page 29 /Amazon Capital Services. Two charges of $348.04. Duplicate charge - 

credit forthcoming. 
b. Page 34 /US Bank Business Card. Two charges of $60.10 for Admin Zoom 

account. One incorrect entry - should be 3/26-4/25. 
 

2. Benefit Charge:  
a. We will have the draft resolution change before the BOC at the meeting for 

review and consideration in preparation for the 2022 annual budget process. 
Attorney Quinn will be present to discuss the draft resolution and he will also brief 
the BOC on the three options for the FBC renewal. 

b. Next meeting, we will be bringing before the BOC a request to run the FBC 
election in April of 2022.  

c. Because the election is less than one year away and the critical nature of the 
revenue received, I am meeting with a strategist to assist us in creating our 
message and approach in delivering factual information to our community about 
a necessary but complex funding method.  
 

3. IT Consortium: We conducted the May 17 meeting and reviewed the financials and ILA. 
Included in the ILA was a specific procedure to identify each agencies allocation for 
common costs according to a formula. We made some minor adjustments to the 
agreement and will be sending it back out for the June meeting. Director Robacker 
covered the financials and answered questions from the group. The preliminary costs 
have been reviewed and accepted. At the next meeting we will provide a 3-year 
projection of costs and define the scope of services. 

57



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
4. Mid County Leadership: I attended the quarterly leadership meeting organized by the 

Bethel School District. Many local Mid County leaders attend and are provided impactful 
community information and an opportunity to build relationships. 

 
5. Strategic Finance Committee 2021/22: Once Tanya returns, we will need to gather our 

previous group that has helped develop the strategic finance issues for end of year 2021 
into 2022. We have quite a few items to address moving forward. This group develops 
the financial approaches that need to be considered by the entire BOC for 
implementation. The committee has been the Chair and Vice Chair of the BOC, Fire 
Chief, DC Admin, Finance Director, and IAFF Local 726. 

 
6. SEPA Appeal: South Sunrise- No change in status. 

 
7. Fire Code Adoption: No change. June 7th, at 1300 will be the date the new code goes 

before the community development committee. I have not heard of any concerns about 
the proposal. 

 
8. EMS Study: Continued work to support the information needs of Fitch. We are waiting 

for the GIS info to be provided. After this is accomplished, they will come to CPFR to 
gather a physical sense of our geography and demographics. 
 

9. Fire Chief Selection Process: I was tasked with identifying what has been 
accomplished over the past 4.5 years at CPF&R, what is currently being worked on, and 
then what needs to move forward in the future. In developing this report, I was very 
pleased with our team and all of the changes and work they accomplished during this 
period of time. The BOC has an incredible staff and I feel so very fortunate to have been 
able to work with them, watch them grow in their positions, and see the improvements 
they have accomplished to better achieve our mission. 

 
10. L726 Contract Negotiations: We have received the request to bargain from IAFF Local 

726 and are spending weekly time developing our strategically important items and 
comparable information. I will be requesting an executive session to review this 
information with the BOC once this work is completed. 

 
11. COVID-19: 

a. Emergency Declaration- No changes from previous meeting.  The authority has 
not been exercised during the previous two-week period. I will continue to report 
any uses of the declarations authority. 

b. Governor Proclamation: Pierce County is in Phase 3 with an announcement by 
the Governor that the entire State will be opened June 30th. What that means for 
public meeting I don’t know but it may require public physical access. 
Regardless, it is my understanding that current statute allows Commissioners to 
be present electronically as long as they are able to perform their function and 
role. I have contact Attorney Quinn to develop an updated resolution for the BOC 
to consider allowing BOC members to be present electronically under identified 
conditions. I hope to have that to the BOC at the first meeting in June for your 
consideration. 

58



59



60

port08190
Typewritten Text
Also sent to:
FF/PM Tommy Long
FF John Baca
FF Jeremy Lee
FF Peter Seberson


	1 - 2021-05-24 Board Agenda DRAFT
	3A AIS - FBC
	3B - Resolution to Re-Establish FBC DRAFT EQ_05052021
	5B - 2021-05-10 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2021_05_24 Warrant Approval
	8A - Fire Chief Selection Process
	8B - Freeman Rd Annexation
	8B2  - Atty Quinn Legal Opinion 05172021
	9A1 - AIS, Ops 5-24-2021
	9A2 -  April 2021
	9B - AIS EMS
	9C - AIS - PE
	9D1 - AIS - IT Division
	9D2 - 2021 CPFR IT KPIs v04
	9E - AIS DC Admin
	9F - AIS - Chief
	10 - Corres1
	10 - Corres2



